
MEETING: South Yorkshire, Derbyshire, 
Nottinghamshire and Wakefield Joint 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee

DATE: Thursday, 7 November 2019
TIME: 1.00 pm
VENUE: Sheffield Town Hall, S1 2HH

AGENDA

1  South Yorkshire, Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and Wakefield Joint Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee  (Pages 3 - 52)

Please use the link below to access the papers for the South Yorkshire, 
Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and Wakefield Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee to be held on Thursday 7th November 2019 at 1.00pm in Room G42, 
Sheffield Town Hall, S1 2HH

http://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=520&MId=7515&Ve
r=4 

Enquiries to: Anna Marshall, Scrutiny Officer, Barnsley Council via 
scrutiny@barnsley.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack

http://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=520&MId=7515&Ver=4
http://democracy.sheffield.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=520&MId=7515&Ver=4
mailto:scrutiny@barnsley.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 
 
South Yorkshire, Derbyshire, 
Nottinghamshire and Wakefield Joint 
Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Meeting 

PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL 
 
Thursday 7 November 2019 
1.00 pm 
Room G42, Town Hall, Sheffield 
S1 2HH 
 

 

 

 

1. Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements   

2. Apologies for Absence   

3. Minutes of Previous Meeting  (Pages 1 - 26) 

 To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 
18th March, 2019. 

 

 

4. Pre Consultation on Gluten Free Prescribing  (Pages 27 - 32) 

 Report of Idris Griffiths, Chief Officer Bassetlaw CCG and South 
Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Lead for Medicines Management. 

 

 

5. Hospital Services Review  (Pages 33 - 38) 

 Report of Alexandra Norrish, Programme Director for Hospital 
Services, South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System. 

 

 

6. Hyper Acute Stroke Services - Review  (Pages 39 - 44) 

 Report of Marianna Hargreaves, Transformation Programme Lead, 
South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System. 

 

 

7. Joint Committee of Clinical Commissioning Groups - 
Forward Work Programme  

(Pages 45 - 48) 

 Report of Lisa Kell, Director of Commissioning, South Yorkshire 
and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System. 

 

 

8. Date of Next Meeting   

 To agree a date and arrangements for the next meeting of the 
Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 

 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



A. 1

DONCASTER METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

 SOUTH YORKSHIRE, DERBYSHIRE, NOTTINGHAMSHIRE AND WAKEFIELD JOINT 
HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MONDAY, 18TH MARCH, 2019

A  MEETING of the SOUTH YORKSHIRE, DERBYSHIRE, NOTTINGHAMSHIRE 
AND WAKEFIELD JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE was 
held at the 007A AND B - CIVIC OFFICE on MONDAY, 18TH MARCH, 2019, at 1.00 
pm.

PRESENT: 

Councillors; Andrea Robinson (Chair), Jeff Ennis (Barnsley MBC), Pat Midgley 
(Sheffield CC), David Taylor (Derbyshire  CC)

Other;

• Lesley Smith, Deputy System Lead, SYBICS and Chief Officer, NHS Barnsley 
Clinical Commissioning Group

• Will Cleary-Gray, Chief Operating Officer, SYB ICS
• Katy Hide, Engagement Manager
• Alexandra Norrish, Programme Director, Hospital Services Programme, SYB ICS

10 Apologies for absence 

Apologies for absence were made by Cllr Elizabeth Rhodes of Wakefield MDC and Cllr Simon 
Evans of Rotherham MBC.

Apologies were also received from Sir Andrew Cash, Chief Executive Officer, South Yorkshire 
and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System (SYBICS).

11 To consider the extent, if any, to which the public and press are to be excluded from 
the meeting 

None

12 Declarations of interest, if any 

There were no declarations of interest made.

13 Minutes of the meeting held at Barnsley MBC on 22nd October 2018 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held at Barnsley MBC on the 22nd October 2018 
was agreed as a true record.

It was noted that all information cited in the minutes had since been circulated to all Members 
of the Committee.

14 Questions from Members of the Public 

The Chair informed members of the public, that a meeting would be arranged in early summer 
for Committee Members to meet with them to help better understand their concerns.  It was 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



clarified that no more than 3 representatives from each of the Save Our NHS Areas, a 
representative from each Healthwatch area and finally a representative from the South 
Yorkshire and Bassetlaw group would be invited to the meeting.

Questions were raised from three individual Members of the Public.

The Chair referred to the full set of questions received which were as follows: -

DOUG WRIGHT QUESTIONS

NHS ENGAGEMENT WITH THE PUBLIC

A theme running through the above agenda is 'an essential part of the long term plan is 
undertaking wide engagement with Health and Care staff, parents, the public' .....

Yet both SYB Oversight and Assurance and Executive Steering Group meetings have always 
been held in secret.

The SYB Collaborative Partnership Board still refuses to allow the public to attend their 
meetings.

Both Barnsley and Doncaster Joint Commissioning Management Groups currently also 
exclude members of the public.

Will this Overview and Scrutiny Committee now belatedly consider recommending to these 
bodies, that members of the public can attend the above regional meetings and also ask them 
to have a standard early agenda item, 'questions to the public?'

JHOSC ANSWERS TO PUBLIC QUESTIONS

In future, can the rotating Chairs of this Committee ensure that answers to questions from the 
public are published in the minutes of JHOSC minutes?

PETER DEAKIN QUESTIONS

With regard to the 

The South Yorkshire, Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and Wakefield Joint Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee agenda 

Agenda item 6b item 31 to 43 - Involving people and communities in taking forward the NHS 
Long Term Plan 

Appendix 1 - Our approach to meeting the principles of the NHS England Patient and Public 
Involvement Framework 

I am concerned that these actions/exercises do not and will not involve the public. In past few 
years the ICS and previous incarnations the actual events and surveys said to involve the 
public were and are stage managed to give the impression of public engagement.  Many who 
take part are NHS staff, managers and supervisors and patient groups in order to produce the 
right input and right responses. This consists of limiting discussion, dismissing and not 
recording critical voices, whilst giving the pretence of full public engagement

Scrutiny Committees can undertake investigations into a specific topic. The Committee can 
then collect evidence from relevant people and organisations ('interested parties') so that the 
members of the Committee can produce a public report that covers their findings, conclusions 
and recommendations. 

Page 2
Page 6



Can the JHOSC be sure that the construction of the long term plan, communication and 
engagement report (agenda item 6b), will involve the public and not be stage managed. 

Can the JHOSC be sure that all of the suggested actions in (agenda item 6 and appendix 1) 
will happen and that this is not just a list of suggestions of what could be done to involve the 
public. 

Can the JHOSC as part of the past and ongoing ICS public engagement, ask the ICS for 
evidence of how they have involved the public in decisions around, clinical priorities - (agenda 
item b 9 to 20), cancer care, maternity and neonatal care, cardiovascular disease, respiratory 
disease, primary and community care, mental health services, learning disabilities and autism, 
workforce and Digital technology.        

NORA EVERITT

LTP Challenges – Money and Staffing: 

The Long Term Plan deliberately skims over the two biggest SOLVABLE problems in the 
NHS. 

The first is the money. 3.4% (it's actually 3.1% as many has commented)  is totally inadequate 
when, just to stand still, requires, according to the Audit Office, 4.3%. What we are seeing is a 
deliberate inbuilt continuous underfunding of the health service in the future which in turn 
impacts on the workforce. With 106,000 vacancies the minimum year on year increase needs 
to be at least over 5% and additional funding to restore nurses bursaries. 

The health service, with this funding and no immediate plan to fill the 106,000 vacancies can 
only continue by cutting services, beds, and/or introducing top up payments either from 
personal income/savings or private health insurance. 

Given the speed with which the ICS is being introduced will the JHOSC:

a) confirm that the funding is insufficient, 

b) seek assurances and details of how NHS England is going to fill the 106,000 vacancies 
and increase the funding to sustainable levels within the time allowed for the introduction 
of the ICS,

c) establish that bed closures will cease and confirm that the fundamental rules of the NHS 
being free at the point of need will not be replaced by a fixed budget. 

NHS money & budgets:

The money still flows with the patient - even though the budgets are allocated on whole 
populations.

As currently, funding follows the patient, how will patients be funded if: 

a) the funding is permanently inadequate? 
b) there are fixed budgets either on a personal basis ( as is being started with  maternity) 

or on an individual ICS basis? 

Privately Provided Home Care:

We have seen how disastrous the privatisation of care has been. Where once we had an 
imperfect but affordable system we now have an even more imperfect system which has 
become ludicrously expensive, has workers on appallingly low wages, on zero hours contracts 
and no payment for " journey time " between " what is laughingly referred to as " clients ". 

Page 3
Page 7



Many of these elderly people were promised a cradle to the grave health service built upon a 
basic tax of 33% and that was what they got.

Care for the elderly has become a system by which they lose their homes, their pensions, their 
dignity and their sense of place in a community and it is well past the time to take the whole 
care system out of the hands of the inefficient, criminally expensive, private sector and have it 
as part of the NHS as part of a genuinely integrated care system.    Why is that not being 
pursued?  

Agenda Items 6, 6a, 6b

All 3 reports contain a RISK AND ASSUMPTIONS section completed with the statement 
“"There are no specific risks associated with the recommendation in this report".

This is combined with a RECOMMENDATIONS section that is again bland and unfocussed 
“That the Committee considers and comments on the information presented”.

These two expressions negate what Scrutiny Committees should be about. The JHSOC 
agenda reports are designed to spoon-feed one option and avoid informed discussion, which 
is illegal under the Gunning Principles.

QUESTION Is Scrutiny content to continue supporting the illegal breach of the  Gunning 
Principles by the ICS and accept the legal, financial and reputational consequences?

Agenda Item 6a

Para. 15 of the report says that 
 “changes set out in the Long Term Plan can be achieved within the current legislation”. 

This directly contradicts the minutes of the Meeting of NHS England and NHS Improvement of 
28/2/19 that proposed revoking present legislation to do with Mergers, Competition 
Requirements, Contested Licence Conditions and Contested National Tariff Conditions and 
the introduction of a new ‘best value test’.

QUESTION Are Scrutiny members aware of this contradiction, the FULL  implications of 
revoking present legislation, and the discredited record of the ‘best value test’ in PFI contracts 
that have imposed inestimable financial misery on the NHS?

Respect for statutory duty and responsibility:

On 25th June 2018 the judge found that this Joint Health Scrutiny Committee was wanting in 
carrying out their scrutiny responsibilities on a previous NHS service change by a lack of 
records. This related to a lack in their meeting records of:

• any clarity that the NHS responses to the JHOSC questions around some concerns about 
the proposed NHS service change actually eliminated the JHOSC concerns

• any record of a clear decision that there were no recommendations to be made to the 
NHS to alter their proposals

The rather repetitive documents presented contain contradicting, or inaccurate, information 
e.g.

Paper 6 states (P11):  “The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the opportunity 
to be consulted on the following areas:

A. Integrated Care System Governance Arrangements;

Page 4
Page 8



B. NHS Long Term Plan;

C. Transformation Workstream Programmes within the South Yorkshire and
     Bassetlaw (SYB) Integrated Care system”
            And yet each Paper relating to A, B, and C states:                                                                
                         “There are no consultation implications within this report.”

2. In paper 6a – relating to the ICS Governance arrangements specify in points 11-16 on 
P 14 that these involve action to “redesign services” and create “streamlined NHS 
commissioning arrangements to enable a single set of NHS commissioning decisions at a 
system level”
Both such actions require a statutory consultation of:

• The JHOSCs, as they are very extensive and significant changes
• The public as stated in Section 14Z2 (the statutory right to be consulted on changes in 

commissioning arrangements)

(14Z2 public involvement duty is for commissioners to ‘involve individuals to whom the 
services are being or may be provided’ in ‘proposals [and decisions] about changes to 
commissioning arrangements where the implementation of the proposals [and decisions] 
would have an impact on the manner in which the services are delivered to the individuals or 
the range of health services available to them”)
 
Is the JHOSC going to clarify if the ICS are formally consulting them on these three  very 
complex areas of change in NHS services that are intended to set the scene for the next five 
or ten years? 

If it is not a formal consultation, then is the JHOSC going to ask when the ICS intend to 
formally consult them, when this will take place and will the changes have been implemented 
before the consultation takes place?

Closure of some Ophthalmic Emergency services (Agenda Item 6c Ps 37/8):

In Paper 6c – point 35 on Ps 37/8 refers to Communications and Engagement, and the last 
bullet point refers to the Ophthalmic out of hour’s emergency service.  The decision to close 
this service in two hospitals is reported as being in 2015, but the survey information given to 
patients in February 2019 implies it happened a few months ago.  

Local Senior Ophthalmic staff say it happened in November 2017 and Ophthalmic consultants 
across Yorkshire tell me that although it only affects few people, these patients still deserve 
safe, speedy accurate diagnosis and treatment, and explained that diagnosis cannot be 
accurately made virtually where the image of the eye cannot actually examined by the 
specialist.

Will the JHOSC question why there was a full statutory consultation of both the JHOSC and 
the public when similar closures were planned in Children’s Acute Services in 2017 but were 
not carried out when this closure of out of hours emergency Ophthalmic services were 
planned, and implemented in the same year? 

The Chair thanked those members of the public for their questions submitted prior to and 
raised at the meeting.  The Chair provided assurances that the questions and statements had 
been considered and would be incorporated into the Committees questions as well as being 
addressed through responses provided where applicable.  It was added that a full set of 
written responses would be provided to those questions that were within the remit of the 
Committee.

Please see following link: - Responses to Public Questions

Page 5
Page 9

https://doncaster.moderngov.co.uk/documents/b10188/Responses%20to%20Public%20Questions%2018th-Mar-2019%2013.00%20South%20Yorkshire%20Derbyshire%20Nottinghamshire%20and.pdf?T=9


15 South Yorkshire, Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and Wakefield Joint Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee Covering Report 

Members were presented with the covering report that presented the following areas for 
discussion.

16 Governance Arrangements For South Yorkshire And Bassetlaw Integrated Care 
System For 2019/20 

A report was provided that outlined the next phase of governance arrangements for 
South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw (SY&B) Integrated Care System (ICS) for 2019/20.  It 
was explained that work would continue on the full governance arrangements, which 
recognised both the national developments on NHS system architecture and the work 
with system partners in order to develop an overall system governance framework for 
the ICS.

It was noted that shared governance working arrangements had been in place since 
the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw (SY&B) Sustainability Transformation Plan (STP) 
had begun before becoming the Integrated Care System (ICS).  Members were 
informed how a number of changes would be undertaken this year, which would help 
strengthen the collaboration. 

It was stated that given the work being undertaken amongst partners (and which 
included the public), there was a need to share information effectively within South 
Yorkshire so commissioners were able to make shared decisions with providers.  
Members were reminded that to date the Joint Committee of CCGs had considered 
service changes specifically around Hyper Acute Stroke Services as well as Children’s 
Non-Specialist Surgery and Anaesthesia but that this might not be the case for other 
areas in the Long-Term Plan.

Members were informed how the SYB ICS leadership had engaged directly with local 
authority partners to shape proposals for partnership working and identify priorities, 
which would benefit from system collaboration and where greater value could be 
added.  The Committee was informed that this was seen as a required step for health 
partners to do so before undertaking wider discussions with system partners. It was 
reported that the Collaborative Partnership Board would continue to meet on a bi-
monthly basis (to be reviewed) in due course further to work undertaken with local 
authority partners and system partners.

It was emphasised that the ICS was not an organisation but a partnership and 
therefore not a decision making body.  

It was explained that further work would be undertaken to consider what the actual 
governance arrangements would look like.  It was commented that within the majority 
of local authorities, there were Health and Wellbeing Boards to support this process.

It was outlined that from the outset it had made sense to join up and take decisions 
collectively in relation to what was taking place around health within each of 5 places 
that made up the SYB ICS.  It was continued that Health and Wellbeing Boards, local 
Overview and Scrutiny and local providers had a great deal of work to undertake and 
that all elements of the architecture were considered as important.

Page 6
Page 10



It was noted that Project Management Teams working on behalf of partners, were in 
place to move the agenda items forward. 

It was noted that in comparison to the previous model, the new model was clearer and 
more focused with decisions being tracked back to state organisation discussions that 
had taken place in front of the public, therefore providing assurances with the new set 
of arrangements.

Accountability – The Committee was informed how the ICS partnership was able to 
exercise what was referred to as ‘mutual accountability’ being the statutory 
accountability that rested in 5 places with statutory organisations.  It was explained 
that this was about being able to access care to the same clinical standards.

A Member raised their concerns about how broad the area was and sought 
assurances that the public would be supported to understand how everything was 
working together and to alleviate some of their concerns.  It was suggested that further 
work could be undertaken around ‘myth busting’. 

In terms of barriers, it was viewed that in time, greater decisions would need to be 
considered and made back in place and that was where there may be issues around 
mutual accountability.

It was outlined that ICSs were required to work together with local partners to develop 
their local response to the Long-Term Plan through producing an ICS five-year 
strategic plan by autumn 2019.  It was explained to the Committee that the ICS five-
year strategic Plan would set out what was needed to achieve the ambition set out by 
the Government and that the ICS was on time to produce the plan. 

It was expressed that South Yorkshire was currently in a good place to build on what 
had already been established rather than by producing a fresh strategic plan.

RESOLVED that the Committee;

I. Note the report and;

II. Support further work to be undertaken around myth-busting

17 NHS Long Term Plan 

A report was provided to the Committee that set out the background and context to the 
NHS Long Term Plan.  It highlighted areas of focus within the Plan that included 
clinical priorities, key service area commitments and enablers to delivery.

It was explained how the plan was intended to provide a framework for local planning 
over the next five years.  The report outlined how SYB ICS would engage with its 
many audiences to determine what the NHS Long Term Plan meant for them and to 
co-design the most effective ways to put the commitments into practice locally.  It was 
recognised that healthcare was constantly evolving and this resulted in changing 
expectations and its own challenges.

It was expected that the changes set out in the Plan could be achieved within the 
current legal framework, although it was stated that proposals were being made to 
change legislation that related to the NHS.  Members were informed that national 

Page 7
Page 11



consultation had been launched on potential proposals for changing current primary 
legislation relating to the NHS and this would close on the 25th April 2019. 

It was stated that in respect of procurement, a “best value test” could be applied and 
where best value could be offered by a NHS provider, then the service would not 
necessarily need to go through the procurement process.

It was noted that the Plan, alongside primary care networks, was committed to 
developing ‘fully integrated community-based health care’. It was reported that this 
involved developing multi-disciplinary teams, including GPs, pharmacists, district 
nurses, and allied health professionals working across primary care and hospital sites.  
It was recognised that it was about how everything worked together as a system and 
what it would take to achieve that ambition.

It was noted that the SYB ICS response to the NHS Long Term Plan will be published 
in the autumn. The areas of focus will form the basis of the ICS work plan for the next 
five years and therefore the current workstreams will be reviewed and aligned.   
Priorities included smoking, obesity, air pollution, resistance to antibiotics, maternity, 
Children and Young People mental health, learning disabilities and autism, children 
and young people with cancer.  

It was reported that some of the key messages developed since the publication of the 
plan included;
 
 Boosting out of hospital care; 
 Publication of new GP contract;
 Encouraging to work in networks going forward;
 Backed up by new staff in out of hospital care.

Reference was made to the next steps for public engagement as outlined in the report.  
It was reported that the above reports and updates would be shared with Members of 
the Committee.  The steps included that;

 the communications and engagement plan would be shared with the Collaborative 
Partnership Board and Executive Steering Group and once finalised, shared with 
Boards and Governing Bodies for their meetings in public.  

 updates on the engagement and themes emerging from the feedback would be 
brought to the Collaborative Partnership Board and Executive Steering Group. 

 a report on the engagement would be brought to the Collaborative Partnership 
Board and Executive Steering Group in the summer, in order to inform the South 
Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System response to the NHS Long Term 
Plan. 

The Committee held a discussion and the following areas were raised;

Public Engagement - In terms of what lessons had been learnt from previous 
engagement, the Committee was informed that work was being undertaken to ensure 
that there was a broader representative from members of the public who did not 
normally engage with NHS.  Reference was made to “working well” people who did 
not tend to use health services, therefore, work was being undertaken with larger 
employers and through Healthwatch utilising their contacts in the community.  The 

Page 8
Page 12



Committee was informed that although engagement had been positive and meaningful 
at deliberative events, those sessions did not provide the opportunity to engage with 
larger groups of people. 

It was clarified that Healthwatch England had tasked local Healthwatch groups to 
undertake some targeted work, personalised around the priorities and remit to work 
with seldom heard groups.  It was noted that the national approach was to engage 
with Healthwatch as part of the process and this would provide the necessary 
expertise and steer to take it forward and identify other areas to engage with.

A Member of the Committee highlighted that information on patient and public 
engagement in shaping health services was lacking from National Plans. Therefore, it 
was especially important that we ensure this is undertaken in our local area; to which 
the NHS representatives agreed. 

Prevention - A Member of the Committee raised their concern that although 
individuals were keen to keep well in terms of prevention, issues around health 
inequalities could work against that.  It was considered important that communities 
had the necessary resources to be able to work effectively together to support the 
agenda around prevention and deliver services effectively. Concern was also raised 
that smaller community groups may lose out to larger more established organisations, 
which would not be able to provide a more localised service.

Members supported holding a separate session to discuss what resources were 
available at this stage and the financing available behind it.  

Budget Cuts - A Member of the Committee expressed concern that reductions had 
been made to Public Health money and questioned the impact of this at a time when 
Councils own budgets were also being reduced.

Members were reminded of the role that Simon Stevens had played lobbying for a 
settlement for social care and health.  It was also noted that there was hope for the 
outcome of the Spending Review, which was due to be published later this year.  
Members were informed that there had been a focus around the investment into 
health inequalities and that a great deal was already happening in place.  Reference 
was made to Social Prescribing Link Workers and Cancer Champions, demonstrating 
what investment had been made within health and how there were a number of 
exemplar places within the system.

Workforce – Reference was made to Paragraph 18 in the report about the challenges 
that workforce issues were presenting in delivering the agenda.  

It was reported that the Plan recognised the scale of the challenge and had set out a 
number of specific measures to address it. It was noted that many wider changes 
would not be finalised until after the 2019 Spending Review, when the budget for 
training, education and continuing professional development (CPD) was set. It was 
continued that to inform these reforms, NHS Improvement, Health Education England 
and NHS England would establish a cross-sector national workforce group and 
publish a workforce implementation plan later in 2019.

It was noted that some areas of South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw were experiencing 
difficulties with recruiting in from outside of South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw.  It was 
explained that there had been ongoing issues with recruiting GPs although there had 

Page 9
Page 13



been success around the recruitment of clinical pharmacists.  It was commented that 
the closer individuals were in distance to a teaching hospital, the simpler it was to 
recruit to those areas.  It was expressed that service changes (such as that of Hyper 
Acute Stroke) had progressed workforce issues as consideration had been given as to 
how the population could access safer and sustainable services.

Concerns were raised around shortages in workforce, whether that was in relation to 
not training sufficient numbers and also that some members of staff moved outside the 
NHS once they have been trained.  It was outlined how there had been attempts to 
build a more local workforce and Members were informed that the establishment of 
the workforce hub in the ICS work had been supported.  It was also noted that the 
workforce team were looking at the strategy for the whole region through developing 
pathways schools or apprenticeships and partly through other non-traditional routes. 

It was raised that individual areas had the potential to build their own expertise and 
that it was part of collaborative working how that could be developed.  It was noted 
that with a lack of guidance from the national plan, there was a need to focus on 
delivering the plan as best as possible.

RESOLVED that the Committee;

i. Note the report; and

ii. That the Committee receive further information on;

 The SYB ICS NHS Long Term Plan communications and engagement 
plan by the end of April 2019.

 Updates on the engagement and themes emerging from feedback in 
June 2019

 A report on the engagement as taken to the Collaborative Partnership 
Board and Executive Steering Group summer 2019, in order to inform 
the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System response to 
the NHS Long Term Plan by August 2019. 

iii. That the Committee hold a session on the ICS approach to the prevention 
agenda, including the role of the Voluntary Community and Faith Sector;

18 Transformation Workstream Programmes within the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw 
(SYB) Integrated Care System 

A report provided an update to the Committee on the transformation workstream 
programmes within the South Yorkshire Bassetlaw (SYB) Integrated Care System 
(ICS).  It was outlined that the corporate services workstream priorities were to 1. 
Agree the procurement work plan for 2019/20 and 2. Support the development of 
‘hosted networks’ that will support shared working between the acute Trusts =.

A presentation was provided on progress made with Hosted Networks.  The following 
areas were included:-

 The proposal for Hosted Networks
 Hosts of Hosted Networks

Page 10
Page 14



 Role of the Hosted Networks
 Developing Priorities and Resources for each Network
 Generic Structure

It was explained that there were a number of existing structures to take forward 
shared working between acute providers, but that some existing structures had failed 
to gain traction. The the hosted networks therefore represented a formal collaboration 
between acute providers which were intended to have more levers to support shared 
working, and a higher degree of transparency, in order to give them the best chance of 
success.   It was explained that there would be three levels of hosted networks, 
beginning from collaboration on workforce and clinical standardisation, and gradually 
moving up the levels with increasing levels of collaboration around resources and 
capacity. .  The intention of this shared approach was that patients would be receiving 
services to the same standards across South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw.  

It was added that work was now being undertaken to work with Trusts and 
commissioners to agree the structure, membership and work programme of the 
individual networks. It was commented that the work programme for each of the 
networks would focus on different areas in line with the requirements for that specialty.

It was explained that the role of the Host for each network would be to facilitate this 
shared working. Trusts had put themselves forward to each host one of the Networks. 

It was outlined that each Network would include a Network Steering Group which 
would provide direct oversight  and ensure that the Hosted Network was linked to the 
leadership of the Host and the ICS governance structure.  It was noted each network 
would also have a Clinical Group formed part of the generic structure, which was likely 
to include representatives from primary care and other services. 

It was reported that the networks were provider led but that commissioners would 
have an important role in ensuring that proposals in line with strategic priorities for the 
system were deliverable.  It was explained that any areas requiring decisions would be 
linked into the Joint Committee of NHS CCGs and issues may be escalated into the 
governance of the Integrated Care System.

Further to concern raised by a Member of the Committee, it was commented that 
there was no intention to create disengagement amongst those Trusts that were not 
hosting a particular network.  The Networks would include a variety of roles, such as 
clinical leadership, which might well be drawn from organisations other than the Host.  

Members were informed that there had been a dialogue with those Trusts beyond the   
South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw geographical footprint which footprint, which sent 
patients to this area.  
 
It was outlined that Level 1 networks would focus on developing the workforce in each 
separate organisation. At Level 2 there might be more flexible working across sites, for 
specific  Trusts and specific groups of staff. It was pointed out that this already 
happens in some places and for some specialties, for example, where consultants 
from Sheffield Teaching Hospital deliver outpatient clinics at other Trusts.  

Reference was made to the Long Term Plan, which aims to reduce variation between 
places across the country.  It was explained that there was a national drive to 

Page 11
Page 15



standardise service specifications, clinical protocols and standards, and that leads 
needed to consider how the Network might support this national direction. 

Conversations had been held with the Trusts to discuss where there were existing 
patient groups that could appropriately engage with the hosted networks. 

A Member of the Committee asked whether there was a need for public consultation 
on the Hosted Networks. It was noted that the hosted networks themselves do not 
need to go out for public consultation, since the networks are simply a way of 
organising shared working between the Trusts. Some of the proposals that the 
networks go on to develop might potentially need public consultation, if the Networks 
were to make proposals which impact on how or where services are delivered to 
patients. 

In relation to this, questions were raised about the work that the Hospital Services 
Programme was taking forward to look at changing the clinical model for maternity, 
paediatrics and gastroenterology. It was explained that this work was being taken 
forward with input from Clinical Working Groups and public engagement. It was 
looking at what was the right clinical model for each trust, to deliver sustainable 
services in every Place.   

Assurances were provided that the timeline was on track for October 2019.

Other areas discussed included;

Medicines Optimisation - Reference was made to the updates outlined in the report 
around Medicines Optimisation, one Member commented that within their local NHS 
CCG, it had been reported that £16 million was lost per year through medicine 
wastage when there were other alternatives such as ‘over the counter’ medicines that 
could potentially reduce that figure.  Members were provided assurances that this was 
considered as a priority area.

Social Prescribing – In terms of how disadvantaged communities could be supported 
to deliver social prescribing, for example, through available funding streams, it was 
explained that social prescribing models were being worked to across South Yorkshire 
and Bassetlaw and ranged from the recruitment of Link Workers to what investment 
could be made within the voluntary sector.  It was explained that the voluntary sector 
model might be able to pick up questions around what support was available to 
disadvantaged communities as this area was progressed within those areas.  
Concerns were raised about the impact that austerity has had on this.

It was reported that there was a mix of new monies available for the recruitment of 
Social Prescribing Link Workers, which in many places were linked to an agency or 
body that was an umbrella employer.  Members were told how this then allowed those 
Link Workers to obtain access to voluntary services (in partnership with other 
authorities) which meant that procurement requirements would be at a minimal.

Mental Health and Learning Disabilities – Reference was made to the update as 
contained within the report on these services provided across Doncaster, Rotherham 
and Sheffield.  Members were informed that a great deal of work around this was 
already happening in each of those places.  

RESOLVED that the Committee note the report

Page 12
Page 16



19 Dates and Times of Future Meetings 

It was noted that a date had not yet been identified for the next meeting of the 
Committee.  It was proposed that this could be further considered following the 
proposed meeting in early summer with representatives of Save Our NHS and 
HealthWatch.

CHAIR:                                                    DATE:                    

Page 13
Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14
Page 18



JHOSC PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND DRAFT RESPONSES

DOUG WRIGHT QUESTIONS

NHS ENGAGEMENT WITH THE PUBLIC

A theme running through the above agenda is 'an essential part of the long term plan is 
undertaking wide engagement with Health and Care staff, parents, the public' .....
Yet both SYB Oversight and Assurance and Executive Steering Group meetings have 
always been held in secret.

The SYB Collaborative Partnership Board still refuses to allow the public to attend their 
meetings.

Both Barnsley and Doncaster Joint Commissioning Management Groups currently also 
exclude members of the public.

Will this Overview and Scrutiny Committee now belatedly consider recommending 
to these bodies, that members of the public can attend the above regional meetings 
and also ask them to have a standard early agenda item, 'questions to the public?'

Response: Members of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee agreed to 
write to the relevant bodies. They will seek to ask that they consider their governance and 
decision making programmes in line with their publication schedules to ensure openness 
and transparency where possible.

JHOSC ANSWERS TO PUBLIC QUESTIONS

In future, can the rotating Chairs of this Committee ensure that answers to 
questions from the public are published in the minutes of JHOSC minutes?

Response: Where responses are given to the public at the meeting they are recorded in 
the minutes which are published on the website of the hosting Local Authority.  A 
supplementary document will also be published on the hosting authority’s website 
containing all questions/responses.

Page 1

Minute Annex G

Page 15
Page 19



PETER DEAKIN QUESTIONS

With regard to the 

The South Yorkshire, Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and Wakefield Joint Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee agenda 

agenda item 6b item 31 to 43 -  Involving people and communities in taking forward the 
NHS Long Term Plan 

appendix 1 - Our approach to meeting the principles of the NHS England Patient and 
Public Involvement Framework 

I am concerned that these actions/exercises do not and will not involve the public. In past 
few years the ICS and previous incarnations the actual events and surveys said to involve 
the puplic were and are stage managed to give the impression of public engagment. Many 
who take part are NHS staff, managers and supervisors and patient groups in order to 
produce the right input and right reponses. This consists of limiting discusion, dismising 
and not recording critical voices, whilst giving the pretence of full public engagement

Scrutiny Committees can undertake investigations into a specific topic. The Committee 
can then collect evidence from relevant people and organisations ('interested parties') so 
that the members of the Committee can produce a public report that covers their findings, 
conclusions and recommendations. 

Q Can the JHOSC be sure that the construction of the long term plan, 
communication and engagement report (agenda item 6b), will involve the public and 
not be stage managed. 

Response: At the meeting held on the 18th March 2019, this question was taken into 
account as part of the Committee’s own questions.

Any further evidence gathering (such as additional meetings or a meeting for further public 
involvement) to deal with any particular aspect within the Committees remit  will be 
discussed and agreed to be undertaken at the appropriate time if required by the South 
Yorkshire, Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and Wakefield Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
the Committee (JHOSC).

In terms of public questions at meetings, public questions are included as a standard 
agenda item.

Page 2

Page 16
Page 20



Q Can the JHOSC be sure that all of the suggested actions in (agenda item 6 and 
appendix 1) will  happen and that this is not just a list of suggestions of what could 
be done to involve the public. 

Response:  The ten areas for good public engagement, as outlined in the ICSs approach 
to conversations with the public about the NHS Long Term Plan, are those issued by NHS 
England for ICSs. SYB ICS is using the areas of focus to ensure its approach follows good 
practice.

They will be used alongside the statutory duties and guidance previously issued by NHS 
England for CCGs and NHS England to ensure that each statutory organisation within the 
ICS continues to meet its legal obligations. 

In addition, the ICS recently worked with representatives from Healthwatch, the community 
and voluntary sector, local authorities, Clinical Commissioning Group lay members, 
Foundation Trust governors, members of the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated 
Care System Citizens’ Panel, engagement and communications leads and campaign 
groups (including Save Our NHS Groups from South Yorkshire) from across South 
Yorkshire and Bassetlaw to develop a locally-owned plan for public engagement across 
SYB. This Plan includes a range of actions which will also support ongoing engagement 
with the public. Information about the development of the plan (including independent 
analysis of surveys and conversations during the half day development session to produce 
themes) and the actions agreed are available here: 
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/1115/5066/8512/JCCCG_Pu
blic_Meeting_agenda_and_papers_-_27_February_2019.pdf

Any further evidence gathering (such as additional meetings or a meeting for further public 
involvement) to deal with any particular aspect within the Committees remit  will be 
discussed and agreed to be undertaken at the appropriate time if required by the South 
Yorkshire, Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and Wakefield Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
the Committee (JHOSC).

Page 3

Page 17
Page 21

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/1115/5066/8512/JCCCG_Public_Meeting_agenda_and_papers_-_27_February_2019.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/1115/5066/8512/JCCCG_Public_Meeting_agenda_and_papers_-_27_February_2019.pdf


Q Can the JHOSC as part of the past and ongoing ICS public engagement, ask the 
ICS  for evidence of how they have involved the public in decisions around, clinical 
priorities - (agenda item b 9 to 20), cancer care, maternity and neonatal care, 
cardiovascular disease, respiratory disease, primary and community care, mental 
health services, learning disabilities and autism, workforce and Digital technology.        

Response: Items 9 to 20 refer to the NHS Long Term Plan, which NHS England widely 
consulted on. In particular, the process included:

 14 working groups that ensured the proposals benefited from a breadth of expertise 
and experience, with membership drawn from a range of organisations including 
patient groups, staff and clinical representatives and senior doctors, nurses or Allied 
Health Professionals (AHPs), and local NHS leaders

 200 distinct engagement events, and over 2,500 responses to the engagement 
questions from a range of respondents and organisations together representing a 
combined total of 3.5 million individuals or organisational members/supporters

 work in partnership with the Patients Association and Healthwatch England to engage 
patients and the public, with Healthwatch England submitting evidence from over 
85,000 people.

There is more information about the national engagement process here: 
https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/online-version/chapter-7-next-steps/engaging-people/

Agenda item 6B 31 to 47 outlines the proposed SYB ICS process to involve the public, 
staff and stakeholders in its response to the NHS Long Term Plan.

Any further evidence gathering (such as additional meetings or a meeting for further public 
involvement) to deal with any particular aspect within the Committees remit  will be 
discussed and agreed to be undertaken at the appropriate time if required by the South 
Yorkshire, Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and Wakefield Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
the Committee (JHOSC).

Page 4

Page 18
Page 22

https://www.longtermplan.nhs.uk/online-version/chapter-7-next-steps/engaging-people/


NORA EVERITT

Q1. LTP Challenges – Money and Staffing: 
The Long Term Plan deliberately skims over the two biggest SOLVABLE problems in the 
NHS. 
The first is the money. 3.4% (it's actually 3.1% as many has commented) is totally 
inadequate when, just to stand still, requires, according to the Audit Office, 4.3%. What we 
are seeing is a deliberate inbuilt continuous underfunding of the health service in the future 
which in turn impacts on the workforce. With 106,000 vacancies the minimum year on year 
increase needs to be at least over 5% and additional funding to restore nurses bursaries. 

The health service, with this funding and no immediate plan to fill the 106,000 vacancies 
can only continue by cutting services, beds, and/or introducing top up payments either 
from personal income/savings or private health insurance. 

Q. Given the speed with which the ICS is being introduced will the JHOSC:

a) confirm that the funding is insufficient, 

b) seek assurances and details of how NHS England is going to fill the 106,000 
vacancies and increase the funding to sustainable levels within the time 
allowed for the introduction of the ICS,

c) establish that bed closures will cease and confirm that the fundamental rules 
of the NHS being free at the point of need will not be replaced by a fixed 
budget. 

Response:  The focus of the South Yorkshire Derbyshire Nottinghamshire and Wakefield 
(SYDN&W) Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) is on the planning, 
provision and operation of health services within its geographic footprint as opposed to 
national NHS policy.  Through its work the Committee has, and will consider the local 
impact of issues such as funding and workforce.   Such questions that fall outside of the 
Committees remit will therefore not be responded to.

Page 5

Page 19
Page 23



Q 2. NHS money & budgets:
The money still flows with the patient - even though the budgets are allocated on whole 
populations.
Q. As currently, funding follows the patient, how will patients be funded if: 

a) the funding is permanently inadequate? 
b) there are fixed budgets either on a personal basis ( as is being started with  

maternity) or on an individual ICS basis? 

Response:  The focus of the SYDN&W JHOSC is on the planning, provision and 
operation of health services within its geographic footprint as opposed to national NHS 
policy.  Through its work the Committee has, and will consider the local impact of issues 
such as funding and workforce.   Such questions that fall outside of the Committees remit 
will therefore not be responded to.

Page 6

Page 20
Page 24



Q 3. Privately Provided Home Care:

We have seen how disastrous the privatisation of care has been. Where once we had an 
imperfect but affordable system we now have a even more imperfect system which has 
become ludicrously expensive, has workers on appallingly low wages, on zero hours 
contracts and no payment for      " journey time " between " what is laughingly referred to 
as " clients ". 

Many of these elderly people were promised a cradle to the grave health service built upon 
a basic tax of 33% and that was what they got.
Care for the elderly has become a system by which they lose their homes, their 
pensions, their dignity and their sense of place in a community and it is well past 
the time to take the whole care system out of the hands of the inefficient, criminally 
expensive, private sector and have it as part of the NHS as part of a genuinely 
integrated care system.    Why is that not being pursued?  

Response:  The focus of the SYDN&W JHOSC is on the planning, provision and 
operation of health services within its geographic footprint as opposed to national NHS 
policy.  Through its work the Committee has, and will consider the local impact of issues 
such as funding and workforce.   Such questions that fall outside of the Committees remit 
will therefore not be responded to. 

Page 7

Page 21
Page 25



Q 4. Agenda Items 6, 6a, 6b

All 3 reports contain a RISK AND ASSUMPTIONS section completed with the statement 
“"There are no specific risks associated with the recommendation in this report".
This is combined with a RECOMMENDATIONS section that is again bland and 
unfocussed “That the Committee considers and comments on the information presented”.
These two expressions negate what Scrutiny Committees should be about. The JHSOC 
agenda reports are designed to spoon-feed one option and avoid informed discussion, 
which is illegal under the Gunning Principles.
QUESTION Is Scrutiny content to continue supporting the illegal breach of the  
Gunning Principles by the ICS and accept the legal, financial and                    
reputational consequences?

Response: All consultation, implications, risks and assumptions are contained within the 
attachments to the covering report.  The reports provided by the NHS CCG are not 
decision papers but position statements.

The ICS uses national guidance (which includes the Gunning Principles) alongside the 
statutory duties and guidance issued by NHS England to ensure that each statutory 
organisation within the ICS continues to meet its legal obligations when involving the 
public.

The Gunning Principles specifically apply to consultations. There are currently no formal 
consultations underway on any of the work of the ICS but the ICS is continually involving 
people (patients, staff and the public) in conversations that are shaping work programmes.

Page 8

Page 22
Page 26



Q 5. Agenda Item 6a
Para. 15 of the report says that 
 “changes set out in the Long Term Plan can be achieved within the current legislation”. 
This directly contradicts the minutes of the Meeting of NHS England and NHS 
Improvement of 28/2/19 that proposed revoking present legislation to do with Mergers, 
Competition Requirements, Contested Licence Conditions and Contested National Tariff 
Conditions and the introduction of a new ‘best value test’.

QUESTION Are Scrutiny members aware of this contradiction, the FULL  
implications of revoking present legislation, and the discredited record                     
of the ‘best value test’ in PFI contracts that have imposed inestimable                     
financial misery on the NHS?

Response:  The focus of the SYDN&W JHOSC is on the planning, provision and 
operation of health services within its geographic footprint as opposed to national NHS 
policy.  Through its work the Committee has, and will consider the local impact of issues 
such as funding and workforce.   Such questions that fall outside of the Committees remit 
will therefore not be responded to.

Page 9

Page 23
Page 27



Q 6.  Respect for statutory duty and responsibility:

On 25th June 2018 the judge found that this Joint Health Scrutiny Committee was wanting 
in carrying out their scrutiny responsibilities on a previous NHS service change by a lack of 
records. This related to a lack in their meeting records of:

 any clarity that the NHS responses to the JHOSC questions around some concerns 
about the proposed NHS service change actually eliminated the JHOSC concerns

 any record of a clear decision that there were no recommendations to be made to 
the NHS to alter their proposals

Response: The Committee will endeavour to ensure that any concerns and/or 
recommendations that are raised by the Committee are appropriately recorded in the 
minutes of the meeting.

The rather repetitive documents presented contain contradicting, or inaccurate, information 
e.g.
1. Paper 6 states (P11):  “The purpose of this report is to provide Members with the 

opportunity  
to be consulted on the following areas:

A. Integrated Care System Governance Arrangements;
B. NHS Long Term Plan;
C. Transformation Workstream Programmes within the South Yorkshire and
     Bassetlaw (SYB) Integrated Care system”

            And yet each Paper relating to A, B, and C states:                                                                
                        “There are no consultation implications within this report.”

Response: All consultation, implications, risks and assumptions are contained within the 
attachments to the covering report.  The reports provided by the NHS CCG are not 
decision papers but position statements.

Page 10

Page 24
Page 28



2a. In paper 6a – relating to the ICS Governance arrangements specify in points 11-16 on 
P 14 that these involve action to “redesign services” and create “streamlined NHS 
commissioning arrangements to enable a single set of NHS commissioning decisions 
at a system level”

Both such actions require a statutory consultation of:

 The JHOSCs, as they are very extensive and significant changes
 The public as stated in Section 14Z2 (the statutory right to be consulted on 

changes in commissioning arrangements)

(14Z2 public involvement duty is for commissioners to ‘involve individuals to whom the 
services are being or may be provided’ in ‘proposals [and decisions] about changes to 
commissioning arrangements  where the implementation of the proposals [and decisions] 
would have an impact on the manner in which the services are delivered to the individuals 
or the range of health services available to them”)
 

Q. Is the JHOSC going to clarify if the ICS are formally consulting them on these 
three  very complex areas of change in NHS services that are intended to set the 
scene for the next five or ten years? 

If it is not a formal consultation, then is the JHOSC going to ask when the ICS intend 
to formally consult them, when this will take place and will the changes have been 
implemented before the consultation takes place?

Response: At the meeting held on the 18th March 2019, this question was taken into 
account as part of the Committee’s questions.

Any further evidence gathering (such as additional meetings or a meeting for further public 
involvement) to deal with any particular aspect within the Committees remit  will be 
discussed and agreed to be undertaken at the appropriate time if required by the South 
Yorkshire, Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and Wakefield Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
the Committee (JHOSC).

Page 11

Page 25
Page 29



Q 7.  Closure of some Ophthalmic Emergency services (Agenda Item 6c Ps 37/8):

In Paper 6c – point 35 on Ps 37/8 refers to Communications and Engagement,and the last 
bullet point refers to the Ophthalmic out of hours emergency service.  The decision to 
close this service in two hospitals is reported as being in 2015, but the survey information 
given to patients in February 2019 implies it happened a few months ago.  

Local Senior Ophthalmic staff say it happened in November 2017 and Ophthalmic 
consultants across Yorkshire tell me that although it only affects few people, these patients 
still deserve safe, speedy accurate diagnosis and treatment, and explained that diagnosis 
cannot be accurately made virtually where the image of the eye cannot actually examined 
by the specialist.

Q.  Will the JHOSC question why there was a full statutory consultation of both the 
JHOSC and the public when similar closures were planned in Childrens’ Acute 
services in 2017 but were not carried out when this closure of out of hours 
emergency Ophthalmic services were planned, and implemented in the same year?

Response: - In 2014, it was identified that the emergency out of hours ophthalmology 
service across South Yorkshire and Mid Yorkshire was seeing very small numbers of 
patients (less than one a week); less than one a week per hospital and that staffing a 24 
hour service in all hospitals was not effective or efficient.

The proposal to change the emergency out of hour’s service was raised with each CCG 
and their Local Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee as this was pre the JHOSC. 
There was no requirement to consult on the proposal due to very small numbers and the 
actual numbers have been smaller than projected. Three from Barnsley (since December 
2018) and 24 from Rotherham (since November 2017). 

The children’s surgery and anaesthesia services out of hour’s proposals initially identified 
one in seven children needing an emergency or overnight stay for an operation would be 
affected. The JHOSC felt that these numbers were high enough to require a formal 
consultation process which was undertaken. During the consultation, it emerged that the 
numbers needing to be transferred was considerably lower than initial projections.

Page 12

Page 26
Page 30



 

 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report of: Proposed Pre-Consultation to Consider Formal Consultation 

regarding Standardisation of Prescribing of Gluten Free 
Products across South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw  

______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Pre-Consultation on Gluten Free Prescribing  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report: Idris Griffiths, Chief Officer Bassetlaw CCG and South 

Yorkshire and Bassetlaw lead for medicines management  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  

Information relating to Gluten Free Prescribing, including the differences between 
CCGs in terms of prescribing guidelines and cost differences, were presented to 
the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Joint Committee of Clinical Commissioning 
Groups (JCCCG) for consideration of whether all 5 CCGs should adopt the same 
prescribing recommendations.  

To get an initial public viewpoint on this the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw 
Citizens Panel members were asked for their thoughts. They felt that all 5 CCGs 
should adopt the same prescribing recommendations, i.e. that there should be 
equity of access across the CCGs.  The Panel felt that the consideration should 
be one of equity rather than cost saving. 

The JCCCG has subsequently instructed that wider engagement take place.  This 
paper sets out the relevant issues relating to gluten free prescribing and seeks 
the views of the Joint Scrutiny Committee regarding the proposed engagement/ 
pre-consultation exercise. 
_________________________________________________________ 
 
Type of item:  The report author should tick the appropriate box  

Reviewing of existing policy Yes 

Informing the development of new policy  

Statutory consultation Yes 

Performance / budget monitoring report  

Cabinet request for scrutiny  

Full Council request for scrutiny  

Call-in of Cabinet decision   

Briefing paper for the Scrutiny Committee  

Other  

 

Report to Joint Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for  

South Yorkshire, Derbyshire 
Nottinghamshire and Wakefield 

7
th

 November, 2019  

Page 27

Agenda Item 4

Page 31



 

 2 

 
The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to: 
 
Discuss the proposals for an engagement/ pre-consultation exercise to establish 
public and stakeholder views on a potential standardisation of the NHS policy on 
prescribing gluten free products across South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw and 
provide the ICS with any views and comments. 
 
To provide their views on whether any changes to the prescribing of gluten free 
bread and mixes in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw would be considered a 
substantial development or variation, and accordingly if they recommend that  
there is a formal duty to consult with the Local Authority under the s244 
regulations, once the current engagement/ pre-consultation exercise has taken 
place. 
 
 
___________________________________________________ 
 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 

Page 28
Page 32



 

 3 

 
Report of the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Chief Officer Lead 
for Medicines Management 
 
  
 
 
1. Introduction/Context 
 

1.1 Information relating to Gluten Free Prescribing, including the differences 
between CCGs in terms of prescribing guidelines and cost differences 
were presented to the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Joint Committee of 
Clinical Commissioning Groups (JCCCG) for consideration of whether all 5 
CCGs should adopt the same prescribing recommendations..  

1.2 To get an initial public viewpoint on this the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw 
Citizens Panel members were asked for their thoughts. They felt that all 5 
CCGs should adopt the same prescribing recommendations, i.e. that there 
should be equity of access across the CCGs.  The Panel felt that the 
consideration should be one of equity rather than cost saving. 

1.3 The JCCCG has subsequently instructed that wider engagement take 
place prior to any formal public consultation.   

1.4 This paper sets out the relevant issues relating to gluten free prescribing 
and seeks the views of the Joint Scrutiny Committee regarding the 
proposed engagement/ pre-consultation exercise. 

 

2. Background 

2.1 Coeliac disease is a lifelong autoimmune disease caused by a reaction to 
gluten. When someone has coeliac disease their small intestine becomes 
inflamed if they eat food containing gluten. This reaction to gluten makes it 
difficult for them to digest food and nutrients. Symptoms include diarrhoea, 
constipation, vomiting, stomach cramps, mouth ulcers, fatigue and 
anaemia. 

2.2 Once diagnosed, coeliac disease is treated by following a gluten free diet 
for life. A gluten free diet can be achieved without the need for specific 
manufactured products as many food items are naturally gluten free, e.g. 
meat, fish, fruit and vegetables, rice & potatoes. 

2.3 Gluten Free (GF) foods are available on prescription to patients diagnosed 
with gluten sensitivity enteropathies, and have been since the late 1960s 
when the availability of GF foods was very limited. GF foods are now 
readily available in most supermarkets and a wider range of naturally GF 
food types are also available, so the ability of patients to obtain these foods 
without a prescription has greatly increased. 

2.4 In March 2017, the Department of Health launched a consultation on the 
availability of Gluten Free Foods on Prescription. The outcome of the 

Page 29
Page 33



 

 4 

consultation was reported in January 2018 and the overall statement was 
as follows: 

 “Following its consultation on the availability of gluten-free foods on NHS 
prescription, the government has decided to restrict gluten-free prescribing 
to bread and mixes only. The majority of consultation responses were in 
favour of this.” 

 https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/availability-of-gluten-free-
foods-on-nhs-prescription 

2.5 In August 2018 the Department of Health published a consultation on the 
changes to be made to the drug tariff for Gluten Free Items. The 
consultation closed on 1st October 2018; then, following amendments to 
the Prescribing Regulations, the Drug Tariff was amended in December 
2018. NHS prescriptions issued in England from December 2018 can only 
be for specific GF bread or GF mixes as listed in the Drug Tariff. 

2.6 Whilst GPs can only now prescribe GF bread and Mixes CCGs can adopt 
local policies that may go further than the changes implemented in 
December 2018. There are differences across South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw between the CCGs in the prescribing of Gluten Free Products to 
coeliac patients.  

 

3.0 Current Policies 
 

3.1  Prescribing of gluten free foods to adults (over the age of 18) is not 
recommended in Sheffield. Prescribers can however apply discretion in 
exceptional circumstances where they are sufficiently convinced that there 
is a genuine risk that a vulnerable individual is, or will become, 
undernourished if they do not prescribe gluten free products. 

3.2 Barnsley CCG has restricted prescribing of bread and mixes to a volume of 
8 units per month per individual.  

3.3 Bassetlaw and Doncaster CCGs have similar recommendations to 
clinicians regarding prescribing of gluten free products and prescribe bread 
and mixes to the Coeliac Society recommendations.   

3.4 Rotherham is slightly different to Bassetlaw and Doncaster in that the 
quantity recommended to prescribe is 2 units less than the Coeliac Society 
recommendations. 

3.5 Across South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw in 2018/19 over £400,000 was 
spent on prescribing gluten free food. 

3.6 Standardising policies on gluten free products would have significantly 
different financial impacts depending on the approach taken with a 
potential range of an investment of £200,000 to a saving of up to £290,000 

 

 

Page 30
Page 34

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/availability-of-gluten-free-foods-on-nhs-prescription
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/availability-of-gluten-free-foods-on-nhs-prescription


 

 5 

4.0 What does this mean for the people of South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw? 

4.1 At this stage the proposal is to carry out a pre-consultation exercise to 
consider the detail and options for a potential formal consultation.  There 
will therefore be no impact on the population at this time. 

4.2 There are approximately 1,400 adults who request prescriptions for gluten 
free bread and mixes in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw.  This is 
approximately 0.11% of the population – a figure which has reduced 
significantly in recent years, very largely due to the wide availability of 
gluten free products in shops.   

4.3 Approximately 1% of the population have coeliac disease so approximately 
90% of those suffering the disease do not use prescriptions.  Where 
prescriptions are used the volumes requested by individual patients also 
vary from infrequent to regular.   

4.4 Any change in policy is therefore likely to have no, or very little, impact on 
99.9% of the population.  However, the impact on some of the 0.1%, 
particularly those living in poverty, could be significant depending on the 
outcome of any engagement and if any future policy recommended further 
removal of access to gluten free prescriptions.  

 

4.5 It is proposed that the pre-consultation is a targeted exercise using focus 
groups to ensure a cross-section of views are captured. Those who could 
be affected by any potential changes will be targeted as will those for 
whom the current prescribing recommendations could be deemed 
inequitable. 

 
5.0 Recommendation 
 
5.1 The Committee is asked to discuss and provide the ICS with any views 

and comments on the proposals for a pre-consultation to establish public 
and stakeholder views on a potential formal public consultation to 
standardise the NHS policy on prescribing gluten free products across 
South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw. 

 
5.2 The Committee is asked for their views on whether any changes to the 

prescribing of gluten free bread and mixes in South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw would be considered a substantial development or variation, 
and accordingly if they would recommend that that there is a formal duty to 
consult with the Local Authority under the s244 regulations, once the 
current pre-consultation exercise has taken place. 

 

 

Page 31
Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report of: Alexandra Norrish 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Hospital Services Review  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report: Alexandra Norrish, Programme Director for Hospital 

Services, South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care 
System (alexandra.norrish@nhs.net) 

   
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
The Hospital Services Review of the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated 
Care System has now completed. The Review has looked at how to make 
acute hospital services in the area more sustainable in the long term. The 
attached report is the final report of the HSR. 
 
The report has been requested by the Scrutiny Committee to enable it to 
scrutinise the strategic development of acute hospital services and to be aware 
of any requirements around public consultation.  
 
The report relates to the acute providers in Barnsley, Chesterfield, Doncaster 
and Bassetlaw, Rotherham, Sheffield Teaching Hospital, and Sheffield 
Children’s Hospital. It does not include Mid Yorkshire NHS Foundation Trust. 
 
 
In summary, the Report recommends that: 

 The system should take forward shared working between the Trusts, 
focused on developing Hosted Networks, as an important vehicle for 
transformation going forward. 
 

 The transformation agenda should continue to go forward, in particular 
with a focus on strong workforce planning across the system, and 
development of new models of care and patient pathways, through shared 
working. This approach of collaboration was strongly supported by public 
engagement.  

 

 Since it cannot be guaranteed that transformation will address all of the 
challenges, and unplanned workforce issues can arise at any time, a 
monitoring system with early warning signals should be put in place at a 

Report to Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee of South Yorkshire, Derbyshire, 

Nottinghamshire and Wakefield 

7 November 2019  

Page 33

Agenda Item 5

Page 37



 2 

system level, and transformation will be kept under ongoing review.  
 

 On reconfiguration, the system recognised the potential benefits but also 
that reconfiguration carries a risk of unsettling the workforce and thereby 
destabilising the system. There is also the challenge that while 
reconfiguration significantly reduces demand for workforce on the site that is 
reconfigured, it has only a small effect in terms of reducing the demand for 
workforce overall at system level. The group felt that reconfiguration should 
therefore only be taken forward if it was felt that the system could not be 
made sustainable without it.  
 
The only site where this was felt to be the case is in paediatrics at 
Bassetlaw which, due to staff shortages, has already had to transfer 
children requiring overnight admission to Doncaster Hospital.  Bassetlaw 
continues to have obstetrician lead maternity services but the report 
highlights the challenges in staffing the 24/7 service. The report 
recommends that Bassetlaw CCG, and Doncaster and Bassetlaw NHS 
Foundation Trust, should continue to look at the options around 
reconfiguration.  
 

 Public engagement: Any proposed permanent change to services will need 
to go through public engagement, and (following discussion with the 
relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee) the CCG may consider formal 
consultation with patients and the public. The timing of such a consultation 
and other issues that may also be included in a consultation process are 
matters for the CCG to consider.   

 
__________________________________________________________ 
 
Type of item:  The report author should tick the appropriate box  

Reviewing of existing policy  

Informing the development of new policy  

Statutory consultation  

Performance / budget monitoring report  

Cabinet request for scrutiny  

Full Council request for scrutiny  

Call-in of Cabinet decision   

Briefing paper for the Scrutiny Committee X 

Other  

 
The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to: 
Consider the recommendations of the report.  
 
If any individual CCGs choose to take forward recommendations around 
reconfiguration in their own areas they will engage with individual Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees as required, in addition to keeping the JHOSC engaged. 
___________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  
The final report of the HSR and its appendices are attached.  
 
Category of Report: OPEN  

Page 34
Page 38



 3 

 
Report of the Programme Director of Hospital Services –  
Final Report of the Hospital Services Programme 
 
 
1. Introduction/Context 
 
1.1 Over the last two years, the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw (SYB) health 

and care system has been considering how best to support the long term 
sustainability of acute hospital services in South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw (SYB), Mid Yorkshire and North Derbyshire (SYB(MYND)). 

 
Analysis of the options has now been completed, and the conclusions 
are laid out in the final report. A draft of the final report which was 
discussed in public at CCG Governing Bodies has been in the public 
domain since August and the final version will be published shortly, 
following agreement of the report by the Joint Committee of Clinical 
Commissioning Groups.  
 
The JHOSC has received regular reports on the development of the 
Hospital Services Review and have requested the current update on the 
recommendations of the final report. 

 
 
2. Main body of report, matters for consideration, etc  

2.1 Main issues  

 
In summary, the Report recommends that: 

 The system should take forward shared working between the Trusts, 
focused on developing Hosted Networks, as an important vehicle for 
transformation going forward. 

 Hosted Networks will work in three ways: Level 1 will focus on shared 
approaches to workforce, clinical standardisation and innovation; Level 2 
will involve a higher level of sharing resources across the system; and Level 
3 will consist of a closer relationship with one Trust providing or supporting 
services on another Trust’s site(s).  
 
All of the Trusts will participate in setting up ‘level 1’ Hosted Networks for 
maternity, paediatrics, gastroenterology, stroke and Urgent and Emergency 
Care. These will focus on developing a shared approach to workforce and to 
developing the same clinical standards across all sites.  
 
Sheffield Children’s Hospital is also looking at developing a ‘level 3’ Hosted 
Network with Doncaster and Bassetlaw for paediatrics. The level 3 network 
allows for Trusts to work together in a more structured way to enhance 
patient services, helping with (for example) recruitment and training of 
workforce, and developing the clinical pathways and service model. Other 
NHS Trusts have developed similar models at a national level, for example 
Alder Hey supports paediatrics services in a number of hospitals nationally. 
The options and opportunities around this model are at an early stage and 
will be explored with staff and patients as they develop. 
 

Page 35
Page 39



 4 

 The transformation agenda should continue to go forward, in particular 
with a focus on strong workforce planning across the system, and 
development of new models of care and patient pathways, through shared 
working. This approach of collaboration was strongly supported by public 
engagement.  

 

 Since it cannot be guaranteed that transformation will address all of the 
challenges, and unplanned workforce issues can arise at any time, a 
monitoring system with early warning signals should be put in place at a 
system level, and transformation will be kept under ongoing review.  
 

 On reconfiguration, the system recognised the potential benefits but also 
that reconfiguration carries a risk of unsettling the workforce and thereby 
destabilising the system. There is also the challenge that while 
reconfiguration significantly reduces demand for workforce on the site that is 
reconfigured, it has only a small effect in terms of reducing the demand for 
workforce overall at system level. The group felt that reconfiguration should 
therefore only be taken forward if it was felt that the system could not be 
made sustainable without it.  
 

 The only site where this was felt to be the case is in paediatrics at 
Bassetlaw which, due to staff shortages, has already had to transfer 
children requiring overnight admission to Doncaster Hospital.  Bassetlaw 
continues to have obstetrician lead maternity services but the report 
highlights the challenges in staffing the 24/7 service. The report 
recommends that Bassetlaw CCG, and Doncaster and Bassetlaw NHS 
Foundation Trust, should continue to look at the options around 
reconfiguration.  
 
Bassetlaw faces particular challenges, owing to its size and geographical 
location. In 2016/17 the paediatrics services at Bassetlaw faced a significant 
level of challenge around the safety and sustainability of the service, 
following a sudden exacerbation of workforce challenges. In January 2017, 
as an immediate response, Doncaster and Bassetlaw NHS Foundation 
Trust, in discussion with commissioners and the Nottinghamshire Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee, made an emergency and temporary change to the 
inpatient paediatric service, turning it into a 7 day a week consultant led 
Paediatric Assessment Unit with overnight admissions being transferred to 
Doncaster Hospital. 
 
Clinicians consider that the Bassetlaw paediatrics service has been 
sustainable since the changes made in January 2017, with no detriment to 
clinical outcomes and no formal complaints related to the new model of 
care.  
 
The Hospital Services Review considered whether Doncaster and 
Bassetlaw had been able to address these issues through working across 
the sites, or whether a transformation model of collaboration between sites 
could relieve workforce pressures enough to allow for the re-opening of the 
overnight inpatients service.  
 
The Review found that underlying challenges with staffing that led to the 
original concerns at Bassetlaw have not been resolved, as shown by 
ongoing recruitment challenges for the Trust, SYB as a whole, and at 

Page 36
Page 40



 5 

national level. Considering the possible impact of transformation, it was felt 
that the workforce gap across the system is likely to increase, as shown in 
the modelling around the shortfall of workforce across the system, and 
national concerns about the shortages of paediatricians and specialist 
children’s nurses.  
 
It was felt that the challenges that all SYB Trusts face are exacerbated by 
Bassetlaw’s geographical position and the demography of its local 
population, which makes it more difficult to rotate staff across sites or build a 
locally-recruited workforce. It was therefore felt to be unlikely that 
transformation alone would be able to improve the sustainability of 
Bassetlaw enough for it to return to running an overnight inpatient unit. 

 
As a result of the specific challenges for Bassetlaw the report considered 
the future sustainability of maternity services at Bassetlaw. There are 
challenges in maintaining neonatology services at Bassetlaw, which in turn 
make it difficult to sustain a 24/7 obstetrics unit. The report therefore also 
invites the Bassetlaw commissioners, working with the Trust, to consider 
how to ensure that women in both areas have access to the appropriate 
acuity of services.  
 

 Public engagement: Any proposed permanent change to services will need 
to go through public engagement, and (following discussion with the 
relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee) the CCG may consider formal 
consultation with patients and the public. The timing of such a consultation 
and other issues that may also be included in a consultation process are 
matters for the CCG to consider.   

 

 

2.2 Implications 

 Financial implications: the main financial implication of the proposals for 
the system as a whole is around the cost of setting up and supporting the 
Hosted Networks.  

 Equality implications: the aim of the Hospital Services Review is to 
provide the residents of South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw with a more 
equitable healthcare system. The aim of the Networks is to standardise 
workforce and clinical standards across the system so that patients receive 
the same standards of care regardless of which site they are on, and so that 
they have easier and quicker access to more specialised services should 
they need them.  

We have also considered the equality implications for patients at Bassetlaw. 
Some of the rural populations who use Bassetlaw hospital are more 
geographically remote. To reduce the impact of service change, the Trust 
already has support in place to allow patients to be transferred between 
sites and to assist families who need to reach the Doncaster site.  

 Risks: commissioners and providers are aware that either approach (just 
transformation, or transformation with reconfiguration) may carry risks. The 
workforce conditions across the NHS remain extremely challenging. In this 
context, there is a risk that reconfiguration could destabilise the current 
workforce, or that retaining the same configuration could be unsustainable. 
To address this the system is putting into place an approach to monitoring 

Page 37
Page 41



 6 

performance through and key risk factors, to identify challenges before they 
emerge.  

 

 

3 What does this mean for the people of South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw? 

3.1 Implications 

The proposals will impact on the quality of acute services that patients 
receive on the hospital sites. In the case of Bassetlaw, the Paediatric 
Assessment Unit model has been in place since 2017 so the local 
population would see the continuation of this model. It is possible that 
other potential changes e.g. to maternity might impact further on the 
local provision of services. 

3.2 Public engagement so far 

The Integrated Care System has engaged with patients and with 
members of the public throughout the process of the Hospital Services 
Review.  

o A number of large open events were held throughout the two years of 
the Review;  

o there were further individual events within each Place, run by Clinical 
Commissioning Groups;  

o there has been a programme of targeted activity focused on seldom 
heard groups, to ensure that people such as BME communities, 
asylum seekers, the traveller community, the LGBT community and 
people with disabilities including the Deaf community; 

o there have been targeted, qualitative discussions of the final 
recommendations with groups of women with babies and toddlers. 
These took place in parallel with the final recommendations being 
discussed by Governing Bodies of the CCGs, and informed 
discussion by the Joint Committee of CCGs. 

 

Reports of all of the public engagement that has been undertaken are 
available on the ICS website, and the ways in which the public 
engagement has informed the development of the recommendations is 
laid out in the annexes of the final report. 

 
4. Recommendation 
 
4.1 The Committee is asked to consider the proposals and provide views 

and comments. 
 
 

 

Page 38
Page 42



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report of: Marianna Hargreaves 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Update: Hyper Acute Stroke Services  
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report: Marianna Hargreaves, Transformation Programme Lead, South 

Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  

 

 After a comprehensive review of hyper acute stroke services across South 

Yorkshire and Bassetlaw a strong clinical case for change underpinned the 

development of a new HASU model. 

 The changes were successfully enacted in Rotherham as planned on 1st July, 

with the Rotherham HASU ceasing operation.   

 The changes were more recently enacted in Barnsley as planned on 1st 

October, with the Barnsley HASU ceasing operation.  

 Early feedback from patients and their families to staff on the ground has 

been positive.  Upon successfully enacting the changes all partners continue 

to be committed to realising the full benefits for patients. 

__________________________________________________________ 
 
Type of item:  The report author should tick the appropriate box  

Reviewing of existing policy  

Informing the development of new policy  

Statutory consultation  

Performance / budget monitoring report  

Cabinet request for scrutiny  

Full Council request for scrutiny  

Call-in of Cabinet decision   

Briefing paper for the Scrutiny Committee X 

Other  

 
The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to: 

Report to Joint Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee for South 

Yorkshire, Derbyshire, 
Nottinghamshire and Wakefield 

7 November 2019  

Page 39

Agenda Item 6

Page 43



2 
 

Consider the recommendations of the report.  
___________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/what-we-do/working-together-
network/regional-stroke-service 
 
Category of Report: OPEN  
 

Report of Programme Lead: Update: Hyper Acute Stroke  
JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

7th November 2019 
1. Purpose 

 

To update the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 

implementation of the new South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw model of hyper acute 

stroke care (HASU). 

 

2. Background 

 

2.1 After a comprehensive review of hyper acute stroke services across South 

Yorkshire and Bassetlaw a strong clinical case for change underpinned the 

development of a new model to improve access to high quality urgent 

specialist stroke care, informed by the evidence to improve outcomes for 

patients. 

 
2.2 The model included a Stroke Managed Clinical Network to support the 

development of networked provision and the consolidation of hyper acute 
stroke care at Doncaster Royal Infirmary, Royal Hallamshire Hospital 
(Sheffield) and Pinderfields Hospital (Wakefield). Plus the continuation of 
existing provision at the Royal Chesterfield Hospital.   

 

2.3 The Joint Committee of Clinical Commissioning Groups approved the 

changes to hyper acute stroke care at the end of 2017. The decision was 

followed by an application for a judicial review.  Confirmation that the judicial 

review was not granted and permission to progress implementation of the new 

HASU model was given in the summer 2018.   

 

2.4 Work progressed to enable us to commission, contract and agree the financial 

arrangements for the new model of hyper acute stroke care (HASU) in South 

Yorkshire and Bassetlaw.   

 

Page 40
Page 44

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/what-we-do/working-together-network/regional-stroke-service
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/what-we-do/working-together-network/regional-stroke-service


3 
 

2.5 It was agreed that the new SYB HASU model would be contracted for through 

existing contractual arrangements with Sheffield Clinical Commissioning 

Group (SCCG) acting as a contract coordinator.   

 

2.6 The business case required additional investment through tariff and best 

practice tariff to secure improved quality and outcomes through the new 

HASU model.  It was not possible for us to use the national stroke tariffs as 

care would be delivered across providers and so local tariffs were developed 

and agreed to underpin the new HASU model. 

 

2.7 The specification was finalised and commissioners worked together to 

develop a draft monitoring dashboard for the new HASU model, including key 

performance indicators, activity, patient flows and all aspects of quality. 

 

2.8 A HASU Implementation Group with representation from all providers, the 

Yorkshire Ambulance Service, Sheffield CCG and the Stroke Association was 

established in December 2018.  

 

2.9 The HASU Implementation Group is chaired by Dr Richard Jenkins, the Chief 

Executive of Barnsley Hospital, in his role as Provider Development Lead for 

South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System.  

 

2.10 Simultaneously NHS England commissioned Mechanical Thrombectomy to be 

delivered at Neuroscience Centres, including Sheffield and Leeds.  Work is 

ongoing in parallel to expand access to Mechanical Thrombectomy as we 

respond to the commitment to do so in the NHS Long Term Plan. 

 
3. 2019 Progress Update  

 
3.1 The HASU Implementation Group agreed implementation dates in early 2019 

for phased delivery of the new HASU model during 2019 as follows: 

 Rotherham HASU to cease on 1st July 2019 

 Barnsley HASU to cease on 1st October 2019 

 

3.2 The Group provided oversight of the implementation of the new SYB HASU 

model, coordinating all the necessary aspects, including communication and 

engagement, planned changes to estates, workforce planning and 

recruitment. 

 

3.3 In addition to the HASU Implementation Group a number of sub groups were 

established to implement the new model including a Clinical Quality Subgroup 

focusing on the clinical tasks, such as reviewing clinical guidelines, 

developing a patient leaflet and planning for onward referral pathways.   

 

Page 41
Page 45



4 
 

3.4 A patient leaflet was developed ahead of enacting the changes to help explain 

the regional model and outline what patients and their families can expect.  

More recently further work has been undertaken with patients and their 

families across SYB, including those with aphasia to develop an accessible, 

easy read patient leaflet. 

 

3.5 A regional patient flow policy has also been developed jointly by all partners 

setting out clear expectations to enable smooth and timely patient flow 

through the regional service.  The policy includes a daily teleconference call 

for all providers to participate in to enable joint oversight of the patient flow. 

 

3.6 Workforce planning and recruitment progressed in a phased way during 2019, 

with each HASU successfully recruiting additional nursing and therapy staff.  

Each HASU reviewed their internal medical cover arrangements to consider 

how best to put in place increased cover for the new model.  In addition to this 

a collaborative approach was taken to securing additional medical cover.  A 

new Stroke Physician was recruited to work in Rotherham with inreach into 

the Sheffield HASU.  Workforce planning for the future continues to be an 

area that requires further work, for both HASU and the whole stroke pathway. 

 

3.7 Upon completing the preparatory work and successful recruitment the 

changes were successfully enacted in Rotherham as planned on 1st July, with 

the Rotherham HASU ceasing operation.   

 

3.8 As anticipated most Rotherham residents have been taken to the Sheffield 

HASU for their urgent stroke care, from which they have either been 

discharged directly home, home with early supported discharge and/or 

community stroke services or transferred back to Rotherham hospital for their 

ongoing acute stroke care and inpatient rehabilitation.  

 

3.9 Stroke teams in Sheffield and Rotherham have worked together closely with 

the Yorkshire Ambulance Service to ensure that patients are transferred back 

to Rotherham after their initial urgent specialist stroke care in a timely way, so 

that their ongoing care and support is closer to home in a place that best 

meets their needs. 

 

3.10 After successful implementation in Rotherham in July the changes were more 

recently enacted in Barnsley as planned on 1st October, with the Barnsley 

HASU ceasing operation.  

 

3.11 Initial feedback is that as anticipated patients are flowing to HASU units in Mid 

Yorkshire (Pinderfields), Doncaster and Sheffield.  All units are working 

together closely to ensure timely transfer of patients after their urgent 

Page 42
Page 46



5 
 

specialist stroke care back to Barnsley Hospital for ongoing care and support 

if required. 

 

3.12 Early feedback from patients and their families to staff on the ground has 

been positive.  Upon successfully enacting the changes all partners continue 

to be committed to realising the full benefits for patients.  Going forward there 

are plans to gather feedback from patients and families and staff to enable 

continuous improvement.  

 

4. Next Steps 

 

4.1 Work is underway to establish an SYB Stroke Hosted Network.  Sheffield 

Teaching Hospital will be the Host for the SYB Stroke Hosted Network. The 

Network will have clinical and managerial leadership from across SYB and a 

specific role focusing on workforce development. 

 

4.2 The Hosted Network will build on the work to date to bring together all key 

partners to embed the changes to hyper acute stroke services. Together with 

commissioners it will monitor the delivery of the new model, including key 

performance indicators, activity, patient flows and all aspects of quality to 

enable us to realise the full benefits for patients.   

 

4.3 The Stroke Hosted Network will focus on reducing unwarranted variation in 

care through the development and application of consistent clinical guidelines, 

take a strategic and collaborative approach to workforce planning and explore 

the opportunities to take an innovative approach to improve care delivery. 

 

4.4 The Stroke Hosted Network will act for SYB as our regional Stroke Integrated 

Delivery Network, as described in the NHS Long Term Plan.  The Network is 

one of the vehicles through which we will work together in future to plan and 

implement the commitments in the NHS Long Term Plan for Stroke. 

 

5. Recommendations  

The JHOSC is asked to note: 

 The successful implementation of the new South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw 

model of hyper acute stroke care. 

 

 The development of a SYB Stroke Hosted Network. 

Page 43
Page 47



 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44
Page 48



 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report of: Lisa Kell 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject: Joint Committee of Clinical Commissioning Groups 

Forward Work Programme 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report: Lisa Kell, Director of Commissioning, South Yorkshire and 

Bassetlaw Integrated Care System (lisa.kell@nhs.net) 
   
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
During 2019/20 the Joint Committee of CCGs (JCCCG) has developed a new 

work programme of joint commissioning priorities with specific delegated 

decision making authority. The authority is given by SYB CCG Governing 

Bodies for some of the priorities to facilitate collaboration and streamlined 

decision making.  

 

The implementation of the JCCCG work programme has started and the over 

the coming months as work progresses the Committee will identify any areas 

where the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) would need 

to be consulted. For example, one of the priorities currently being developed 

from the work programme and for discussion with JHOSC is the 

Standardisation of Prescribing of Gluten Free Products across South Yorkshire 

and Bassetlaw.  

 

Referenced in this paper is the 2019/20 work programme of the JCCCG for 

information and to show the areas where delegated authority for decision 

making to JCCCG has been agreed, along with the recently updated Terms of 

Reference and Manual Agreement. Also referenced for information is the 

strategic Five Year Plan of the partnership of South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw 

organisations (known as the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care 

System (SYB ICS). 

 

Report to Joint Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee for  

South Yorkshire, Derbyshire, 
Nottinghamshire and Wakefield 

7 November 2019  

Page 45

Agenda Item 7

Page 49



 2 

The ICS Five Year Plan is referenced because if any change was taken forward 

within South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, the JCCCG could be the decision 

making body where proposals were discussed and agreed. 

A review of the work of the SYB ICS is also referenced as it shows what has 
been happening since the Sustainability and Transformation Plan was 
published in 2016. Links to all documents, which are available online, are set 
out below. 
 
__________________________________________________________ 
 
Type of item:  The report author should tick the appropriate box  

Reviewing of existing policy  

Informing the development of new policy  

Statutory consultation  

Performance / budget monitoring report  

Cabinet request for scrutiny  

Full Council request for scrutiny  

Call-in of Cabinet decision   

Briefing paper for the Scrutiny Committee X 

Other  

 
The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to: 
Note the current and future work of the Joint Committee of CCGs, and that 
areas will be identified as work develops  on which the Joint Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) would need to be consulted. 
 
___________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers:  
The JCCCG forward work programme – see Enclosure E: 
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/5315/6338/1125/A
genda_and_Papers_JCCCG_Meeting__24_July_2019.pdf 
The JCCCG Terms of Reference and Manual Agreement  – see Enclosure C: 
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/5915/6096/1736/J
CCCG_-_26_June_2019_Agenda_and_Papers.pdf 
The draft Five Year Plan of the SYB ICS – see  
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6015/7045/0668/S
YBICS_LTP_Slides_27_September_WORK_IN_PROGRESS.pdf.  
The SYB ICS Review of its work since the publication of the Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan – see 
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/5415/7104/6065/I
CS_3_Year_Review_website_v.pdf 
 
Category of Report: OPEN  

Page 46
Page 50

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/5315/6338/1125/Agenda_and_Papers_JCCCG_Meeting__24_July_2019.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/5315/6338/1125/Agenda_and_Papers_JCCCG_Meeting__24_July_2019.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/5915/6096/1736/JCCCG_-_26_June_2019_Agenda_and_Papers.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/5915/6096/1736/JCCCG_-_26_June_2019_Agenda_and_Papers.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6015/7045/0668/SYBICS_LTP_Slides_27_September_WORK_IN_PROGRESS.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6015/7045/0668/SYBICS_LTP_Slides_27_September_WORK_IN_PROGRESS.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/5415/7104/6065/ICS_3_Year_Review_website_v.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/5415/7104/6065/ICS_3_Year_Review_website_v.pdf


 3 

 
Joint Committee of Clinical Commissioning Groups Forward Work 
Programme 
 
 
1. Introduction/Context 
 
1.2 The Joint Committee of Clinical Commissioning Groups (JCCCG) has 

previously brought to the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(JHOSC) proposals for change across the South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw, North Derbyshire and Wakefield. 
 

1.3 These changes were for Hyper Acute Stroke Services and Children’s 

Surgery and Anaesthesia Services. 

 

1.4 In July 2019 the JCCCG updated its Manual Agreement and Terms of 

Reference resulting in a number of changes including a change to 

membership with NHS Wakefield CCG departing the JCCCG as an 

associate member. NHS Derby and Derbyshire CCG (the newly merged 

Derbyshire CCGs) is now the only associate member of the JCCCG.       

 

1.5  During 2019/20 the JCCCG has developed a new work programme of 
joint commissioning priorities with specific delegated decision making 
authority given by the SYB CCG Governing Bodies for some of the 
priorities in order to facilitate collaboration and streamlined decision 
making 

 
2. Main body of report, matters for consideration, etc  

2.1 Main issues  
 

2.2      The implementation of the JCCCG work programme has started and as 

work progresses over the coming months the Committee will identify any 

areas where the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

(JHOSC) would need to be consulted. 

 

2.3      The JCCCG work programme includes reviewing the work of the 

Hospital Services Programme (HSP) and Gluten Free prescribing 

3 What does this mean for the people of South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw? 

3.1 Implications 

The current area with the JHOSC for consideration regarding  
consultation is Gluten Free prescribing. The implications for the people 
of South Yorkshire are within the accompanying papers. 

3.2 Any implications for people related to the other priorities on the JCCCG 
work programme beyond these items will be identified over the coming 
months and the JHOSC will be consulted. 

 

Page 47
Page 51



 4 

3.3 Public engagement so far 

Public engagement is ongoing on all areas currently being taken forward 
within the JCCCG work programme. Where engagement is needed to 
inform change, the JHOSC will be consulted for its view on the level of 
engagement. 

Reports of public engagement exercises that have been undertaken in 
relation to the work of the JCCCG or SYB ICS are published on the ICS 
website and CCG websites. The ways in which public engagement has 
informed the development of any recommendations are included within 
reports that go to the JCCCG for discussion.  

 
4. Recommendation 
 
4.1 The Committee is asked to note the current and future work of the Joint 

Committee of CCGs and that work programme priorities will be identified  
and brought to  the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(JHOSC) where it would need to be consulted. 

 
 
 

 

Page 48
Page 52


	Agenda
	1 South Yorkshire, Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and Wakefield Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	Minutes
	 Responses to Public Questions

	4 Pre Consultation on Gluten Free Prescribing
	5 Hospital Services Review
	6 Hyper Acute Stroke Services - Review
	7 Joint Committee of Clinical Commissioning Groups - Forward Work Programme


